
          

 

 

TERRACINA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 11, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.terracinacdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 

AGENDA 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

Meeting Room of The Nexus at Vista Park 
2101 Vista Parkway 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 11, 2022 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. May 9, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………………………...Page 3 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding SFWMD Water Use Permit Renewal Proposal……………………..Page 6 

2. Discussion Regarding Lake Levels………………………………………………………….Page 13 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………..Page 16 

2. Lake Vendor Reports………………………………………………………………………..Page 24 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



Page 2



 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MAY 9, 2022 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Terracina Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:03 a.m. in a Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park located at 
2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on October 1, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Guy Colella, Vice Chairman Chesley Saunders and 
Supervisors Sheik Ameer and Linda Colella and all was in order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff present were: District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and General 
Counsel Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP.  
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Ameer noted that a homeowner would like a fountain. Mr. Palen indicated that this item could be 
discussed under Board Member Comments. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the April 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting were presented and the Board was asked if 
there were any comments or questions. 
 
There being no comments or questions, a motion was then made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. 
Saunders and passed unanimously approving the minutes of the April 11, 2022, Regular Board 
Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Colella inquired about updates on the fountain. Ms. Bethel noted that Mr. Roberts had called and 
advised that the lights could not be fixed and he would go ahead and put a new light set in the fountain. 
Ms. Bethel will follow-up with Mr. Roberts about the completion of the work for the new light sets.  
Mr. Ameer would like the lake locks checked.  Ms. Bethel will set this up with the engineer. 

Page 3



 
 
The Board requested that these items stay on the agenda until the work has been completed. 
 
Mr. Ameer would also like a start and end date for any work being completed going forward. Mr. 
Colella asked Ms. Bethel about the spreadsheet and Ms. Bethel stated that the Board would have it by 
the end of the week.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Engineer Proposals for Stormwater/Wastewater 20-Year Needs Analysis 
 
Mrs. Colella noted on AECOM Exhibit B 6.1, the verbiage contradicts the not to exceed amount 
contract.  The Board would like to approve this proposal if Exhibit B 6.1 is removed.  Ms. Bethel will 
contact AECOM to see if they will remove it.  
 
Mr. Colella would like for staff to go back to Engenuity to see if they will match AECOM’s proposal. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ameer, seconded by Mr. Colella and unanimously passed approving 
Engenuity to prepare the analysis if they match AECOM’s proposal. If Engenuity does not match 
AECOM’s proposal, then is approving AECOM’s proposal with Exhibit B 6.1 removed. 
 
 2.  Consider Allstate Debris Removal Proposal 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ameer, seconded by Mr. Saunders and unanimously passed approving 
addition of Allstate’s debris removal proposal in the amount $50.00 annually. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Mrs. Colella asked if the District was over budget.  Mr. Colella replied that the District is not over 
budget. 
 
 2.  Lake Vendor Reports 
 
Mrs. Colella indicated within the reports, under debris trash removal, it appears that Allstate does 
remove everything the Board has asked to be removed.  
Ms. Colella asked if they were able to take advantage of the fish restocking by Allstate and Ms. Bethel 
responded no. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Ameer noted that he wanted to bring to the Board’s attention about a resident wanting a new 
fountain in the lake by the clubhouse.  The Board briefly discussed this item and decided no extra 
fountains were needed at this time.  Mr. Colella noted that 8 out of 12 lakes had fountains. More 
fountains means higher assessments and you also have to consider fountain maintenance.  
  
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mrs. Colella, 
seconded by Mr. Ameer adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 9:45 a.m.  Upon being put to a vote, 
the motion carried 4 to 0. 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 5



 

2022 06-15 Proposal 
Project No. 4028.01.17 

Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                                  
 
                                                                                      June 15, 2022 
 
Sylvia Bethel 
Special District Services, Inc. 
2501 Burns Rd., Suite A 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
(Via email: sbethel@sdsinc.org) 
 
Re:  Professional Civil Engineering Services 
           SFWMD Water Use Permit Renewal 
 Palm Beach County, Florida 
 Engenuity Group Project No. 4028.01.17 
 
Dear Ms. Bethel: 
 
We are pleased to offer this proposal to render professional civil engineering 
services in connection with the renewal of the SFWMD Water Use Permit 
(hereinafter called the ‘Project’).   The existing SFWMD Water Use permit number 
is 50-05898-W, issued on April 25, 2003 and expiring on April 25, 2023. 
 
Our services will consist of the following: 
 

 Meet onsite with HOA representatives to confirm the location, size and 
make of the existing irrigation pump stations that draw irrigation water from 
the lake system. 

 Prepare a graphic map showing the lake system and the pump station 
locations.  Outparcel area (proposed PBC Sheriff’s office facility) to be 
removed from overall irrigated area calculations.  

 Coordinate with irrigation contractor/consultant to verify flow and usage 
rates to properly address the permit renewal application data.  

 Submit application to SFWMD and address any requests for additional 
information needed for permit issuance.   
 

                                         Total Fee (Lump Sum):        $5,500.00 
 
The cost of printing, reproduction, facsimile, mileage, and postage are included 
in our lump sum fee. 
 
Agency permitting fees are NOT included in our fees and are the responsibility of 
the Owner.   
   

Page 6



2022 06-15 Proposal 
Project No.4028.01.17 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
This proposal represents the entire understanding between you and us with 
respect to the Project.  If this satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of our 
agreement, please sign and return this proposal at your earliest convenience.   
 
 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.0035 FLORIDA STATUTES, THE CONSULTANT 
IS THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY FOR THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IT AGREES 
TO PROVIDE UNDER THIS CONTRACT. NO INDIVIDUAL PROFESSIONAL 
EMPLOYEE, AGENT, DIRECTOR, OFFICER OR PRINCIPAL MAY BE 
INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR NEGLIGENCE ARISING OUT OF THIS 
CONTRACT, AS LONG AS THE CONSULTANT MAINTAINS THE 
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIRED UNDER THIS CONTRACT 
AND AS LONG AS ANY DAMAGES ARE SOLELY ECONOMIC IN NATURE 
AND THE DAMAGES DO NOT EXTEND TO PERSONAL INJURIES OR 
PROPERTY NOT SUBJECT TO THIS CONTRACT.  
 
Sincerely,      Approved By: 
 
 
  
Adam Swaney, PE     Keith Jackson, PE 
Director of Engineering    Vice President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



2022 06-15 Proposal 
Project No.4028.01.17 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Authorization:     Professional Civil Engineering Services 
                             SFWMD Water Use Permit Renewal 
                   Palm Beach County, Florida 
                   Engenuity Group Project No. 4028.01.17 

 
        
 
By:    Date:     
                          (Name & Title) 

 
For:      
                          (Name of Company) 

 
 
 
Contract Amount: (Lump Sum): $5,500.00  

 
 
I am    I am not The Owner of the Property 

 
 
The Property Owner Is:  ____________________________________________ 

 
 
Address:    _____________________________________________     
 

   
 

  
 
 
Telephone: 
 
 
Fax:                _______________________________________________ 
 
Email:                _______________________________________________ 
 
 

Page 8



From: Keith Jackson [mailto:kjackson@engenuitygroup.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2022 3:41 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: Adam Swaney <aswaney@engenuitygroup.com>; 4028.01 TERRACINA CDD 
<4028.01TERRACINACDD@engenuitygroupinc.onmicrosoft.com>; Nury Figueroa 
<NFigueroa@engenuitygroup.com> 
Subject: FW: Terracina CDD ‐ SFWMD Water Use Permit Renewal 
 

Sylvia,  please find our proposal attached for the SFWMD Water Use Permit 
renewal.   Thanks.   
 

Keith B. Jackson, P.E.  
Vice President 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

O:(561) 655-1151 
F:(561) 832-9390 
M:(561) 758-8581  

 

 
 
 
 

kjackson@engenuitygroup.com 
www.EngenuityGroup.com 
  
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 101  
West Palm Beach, FL 33409  
When an electronic file is released by Engenuity Group, Inc. to an 
outside party we  lose  the ability  to  control how  those  files are 
used. Any licensed professional, or their representative, using our 
file  is  reminded  of  the  rules  and  regulations  set  forth  by  their 
licensing board  in  terms of  the  reuse of another professional’s 
work. The use of any part of files produced by Engenuity Group, 
Inc. by an outside party  indicates agreement  to  the  terms and 
conditions of their respective governing board laws. If the user is 
not  in  agreement with  all  said  laws,  they  should NOT  use  the 
above referenced files. In the event of a discrepancy between the 
digital file and the hard copy, the hard copy takes precedence.  

 

 
From: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 12:18 PM 
To: Keith Jackson <kjackson@engenuitygroup.com> 
Cc: Frank S Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com>; 4028.01 TERRACINA CDD 
<4028.01TERRACINACDD@engenuitygroupinc.onmicrosoft.com>; Adam Swaney 
<aswaney@engenuitygroup.com> 
Subject: RE: Terracina Community Development District WUP 50‐05898‐W 
 

Hello Keith, 
 
Thank you for speaking with Vincent. Yes,  please provide a proposal thank you  
 
Best Regards, 
 
Sylvia Bethel 
Special District Services  
2501A Burns Road  
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
P:  561-630-4922 Ext 227 
F:  561-630-4923 

Page 9



 
www.sdsinc.org 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:  Please do not use the “Reply All” feature of your e‐mail, as it may be deemed a 
violation of the Sunshine Law.  Please reply only to the management office.  Thank you! 
NOTE:  Under Florida law, e‐mail addresses are public records.  If you do not want your e‐mail address 
released in response to a public records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity.  Instead, 
contact this office by telephone or in writing. 

 
From: Keith Jackson [mailto:kjackson@engenuitygroup.com]  
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2022 4:26 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: Frank S Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com>; 4028.01 TERRACINA CDD 
<4028.01TERRACINACDD@engenuitygroupinc.onmicrosoft.com>; Adam Swaney 
<aswaney@engenuitygroup.com> 
Subject: RE: Terracina Community Development District WUP 50‐05898‐W 
 

Sylvia,  yes, we can help.  I just spoke with Vincent.   
 
Water Use permits are good for 20 years and yours, attached, expires on April 25, 
2023.    
 
The email was triggered by the sale of the out parcel, and subsequest permit 
application to SFWMD for the Sheriff Station HQ Annex project by PBC.   Our 
office is actually doing the civil for the architect chosen by PBC for that project.   
 
We will need to “reapply” to SFWMD for a new water use permit with a modified 
boundary (taking out the parcel) and verification of the pumping systems, 
locations, volumes, etc. etc. that are currently being used.   
 
Do you want a proposal for this work?    

Page 10



Keith B. Jackson, P.E.  
Vice President 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

O:(561) 655-1151 
F:(561) 832-9390 
M:(561) 758-8581  

 

 
 
 
 

kjackson@engenuitygroup.com 
www.EngenuityGroup.com 
  
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 101  
West Palm Beach, FL 33409  
When an electronic file is released by Engenuity Group, Inc. to an 
outside party we  lose  the ability  to  control how  those  files are 
used. Any licensed professional, or their representative, using our 
file  is  reminded  of  the  rules  and  regulations  set  forth  by  their 
licensing board  in  terms of  the  reuse of another professional’s 
work. The use of any part of files produced by Engenuity Group, 
Inc. by an outside party  indicates agreement  to  the  terms and 
conditions of their respective governing board laws. If the user is 
not  in  agreement with  all  said  laws,  they  should NOT  use  the 
above referenced files. In the event of a discrepancy between the 
digital file and the hard copy, the hard copy takes precedence.  

 

 
From: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org>  
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2022 12:17 PM 
To: Keith Jackson <kjackson@engenuitygroup.com> 
Cc: Frank S Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com> 
Subject: FW: Terracina Community Development District WUP 50‐05898‐W 
 

Keith, 
 
I received this email below, could you please assist me with this request? 
 
Thank you  
 
Best Regards, 
 
Sylvia Bethel 
Special District Services  
2501A Burns Road  
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
P:  561-630-4922 Ext 227 
F:  561-630-4923 
 

 
www.sdsinc.org 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:  Please do not use the “Reply All” feature of your e‐mail, as it may be deemed a 
violation of the Sunshine Law.  Please reply only to the management office.  Thank you! 

Page 11



NOTE:  Under Florida law, e‐mail addresses are public records.  If you do not want your e‐mail address 
released in response to a public records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity.  Instead, 
contact this office by telephone or in writing. 

 
From: Migliore, Vincent [mailto:vmiglior@sfwmd.gov]  
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2022 10:36 AM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: colellaguy145@gmail.com; Linda.BerbusseColella@Cerner.com; shkameer@gmail.com; 
camas41@hotmail.com; jose.esquerete@gmail.com; Naya, Alberto <anaya@sfwmd.gov> 
Subject: Terracina Community Development District WUP 50‐05898‐W 
 
Hello 
Please contact me asap regarding a water use permit that needs attention due to property no longer 
controlled by the Permittee and the Permittee on record apparently being the developer EQUITY 
INVESTMENTS LLC. 
 

Vincent Migliore 
  
Water Use Bureau 
Regulation Division 
South Florida Water Management District 
3301 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, FL 33406 
561-682-6231 or 1-800-432-2045 ext. 6231 
Fax: (561)682-5220 
  
Mailing Address: 
South Florida Water Management District 
MSC 9310 
3301 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, FL 33406  
 
NOTE:   

While the District supports that it is commonplace and convenient to collaborate via email during the 
pre‐application/application process, Permit Applications and Responses to a Request for Additional 
Information (RAI) submitted via email are not an official submittal (Section 40E‐2.101, Florida 
Administrative Code).   For timely and efficient processing of permit applications and RAI responses, 
submit online using ePermitting 
 
 

 
 
Florida enjoys a broad public records law. This email and any response to this email are subject to that 
law and may be reviewed by the public. 
 

Page 12



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

  
FIELD OBSERVATION REPORT

1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101
West Palm Beach, FL 33409   
Tel. 561.655.1151       Fax 561.832.9390
E-mail:  info@engenuitygroup.com
Website:  www.engenuitygroup.com

PROJECT: Terracina, CDD
PROJECT NO: 4028 DATE: May 20, 2022
CONTRACTOR: ARRIVAL TIME: 2:30
TYPE OF OBSERVATION: Lakes and Control 
Structures

DEPARTURE TIME: 3:30

OBSERVATIONS:

SDS requested follow-up site visit to review lake levels and control structure function.

Lakes now appear very low compared to photos from my annual report of August 2021. 

I observed both the operable control structures that control lakes 1 and 3-12.  These 
control structures have locked chains preventing any adjustment of the operable 
weir/bleeder system and appear to still be in place and visually functional.  Water levels 
in both the lake(s) and the LWDD canal are equalized and well below the weir and 
bleeder inverts.  Photos attached.

As documented in my earlier field observation reports:

Community is experiencing low lake levels in ALL lakes.  Lake # 2 has a 42" culvert that 
discharges stormwater from Jog Rd.  The invert elevation of this culvert is well above the
current lake water elevation, which is approximately 18" below the bleeder invert 
elevation of the control structure discharging to the LWDD L-4 canal.  Lake #2 is isolated 
from the other 11 lakes with it's own control structure.  A review of the construction plans 
shows this lake as an existing lake, apparently excavated prior to the Terracina 
development, solely for drainage of Jog Rd., and incorporated into the development for 
aesthetics and further stormwater storage.  The other 11 lakes are NOT connected to 
Lake #2, but are interconnected with each other and discharge thru the other 2 
independent control structures.

Based on the appearance of low lake levels, I offer the following factors that may be 
influencing these lower levels at this time: 

Page 13



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

1. We have been in the “dry” season for the last several months.  Rainy season
traditionally begins June 1 and I expect with increased rain, the lake levels will rebound.

2. Irrigation withdrawls from lakes -  The common area irrigation system draws from the
lake system, which are all interconnected.  While this is common practice, it may be
contributing to the overall drawdown of the lake system.  A recharging well system could
be explored to help sustain the lake levels.  A system design would be needed and the
proper agency permitting for "Water Use" would be required to implement such a
system.   These systems are common in South Florida.

3. Terracina is in close proximity to a regional water supply wellfield located at the NE
corner of Jog Rd and Belvedere Rd.  This wellfield is owned and operated by the PBC
Water Utilities Department and has been long established for regional public water
supply, including Terracina.  These well fields create a groundwater drawdown and a
cone of influence that most likely includes the area in and around the Terracina lake
system.  Further research would be needed to approximate the effect these wellfields
may be having on the Terracina lake system.

In conclusion, I have been documenting the lower lakes levels in Terracina for several 
years in my annual reports.

 Items 1 and 3 above are issues that cannot be controlled or influenced by Terracina 
action, without significant cost, namely lake lining.

Item 2 can be discussed further for study and implementation, if desired.

The situation in Lake #2 could be controlled by placing a flap-gate or an "outlet 
controlled" discharge flapper on the outlet end of the 42" culvert.  This would allow 
discharge into the lake from Jog Rd. as intended, but not allow "bleed off" from the lake 
back into the Jog Rd system, thus lowing Lake #2 by 18"+/-.   Other influences mentioned 
above may also be a factor here as well.

Page 14



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

REPORT BY: Keith B. Jackson, P.E.

COPIES TO:  Sylvia Bethel,  SDS

Page 15



Terracina
Community Development District

    Financial Report For
June 2022

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35


	Terracina Community Development District - July 11, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 9, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding SFWMD Water Use Permit Renewal Proposal
	Discussion Regarding Lake Levels
	Financial Report
	Lake Vendor Reports




